
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 15 July 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 
 

Thursday, 23 July 2020 at 2.00 pm 
This meeting will be held by remote conferencing using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Mark Whittington, 
Councillor Sue Woolley and one Conservative vacancy 

 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 
 
Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 
 

Governance and Audit Committee - 23 July 2020 
 
If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 
desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 
 
When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 
they would like to speak. 
 
If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 
 

Governance  

and Audit 

Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/FGBHJQNS
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  
   

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2020 (Pages 3 - 9) 

   
4.   Updates from previous meeting  

   
5.   Counter Fraud Annual Report 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Pages 11 - 16) 

   
6.   Health and Safety Annual Report 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 
(Pages 17 - 34) 

   
7.   Risk Management and Business Continuity Annual Report 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Pages 35 - 41) 

   
8.   Treasury Management Annual Report 

Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
(Pages 43 - 53) 

   
9.   Work Programme (Pages 55 - 58) 

   
10.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

   



 
 

Minutes 
Governance and Audit Committee 
Thursday, 4 June 2020 

  
 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Chris Benn 
 

Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
 
 

Cabinet Members  
 
Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
 
Other Members 
 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
 
Officers External Audit 
 
Interim Director of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai) 
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright) 
Head of Governance (Jo Toomey) 
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey Elliott) 
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page) 

Paul Harvey (Grant Thornton) 
 
Internal Audit 
 
Chris Williams (RSM) 
Amjad Ali (RSM) 

 

 
41. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 
Following a register of attendance, it was confirmed that all members of the Committee 
were present at the meeting.  
 
42. Disclosure of interests 
 
No interests were disclosed. 
 
43. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019 were proposed, seconded and 
agreed as a correct record. 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

44. Updates from previous meeting 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the proposed changes to the Risk Management 
Framework would be considered during the course of the meeting. 
 
A member of the Committee asked for the date the Council had joined the Welland 
Procurement Partnership. The date was confirmed as 1 April 2019.  
  
45. External Audit Plan 
 
A representative from Grant Thornton presented the report on the External Audit Plan. 
The Committee was asked to note the significant risks outlined in the report, which had 
been updated to reflect the additional significant risk of Covid-19. Reference was made 
to the deadline for the audit opinion, which had been moved to the end of November 
following the Covid-19 outbreak. A fee variation was also detailed in the report, which 
was due to the additional work required regarding pensions, Personal Protective 
Equipment valuation, Covid-19 and the requirement for additional supervision and 
leadership to meet the Financial Reporting Council’s standards. Members were given 
the opportunity to ask any questions relating to the report.  
 

A question was raised as to the criteria by which a risk would be considered significant. 
It was explained that the most significant financial risks were those of a high value that 
relied on estimates, which could lead to a material misstatement. 
 
Further explanation was requested regarding the risk of financial sustainability identified 
in the report in relation to the need for an updated Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Corporate Plan. The Interim Director of Finance outlined the timeline over 
the coming months for the development of these documents, emphasising the need for 
the MTFS to align with the Corporate Plan. Funding gaps within the current MTFS could 
be partially attributed to forecasts made regarding the Business Rates baseline reset 
and Fair Funding Review, which were originally due to be implemented in April 2020. 
Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic, it was likely that the resets would be deferred 
and the Council would receive a similar sized settlement to previous years for 2021/22. 
Any changes to the MTFS as a result of the pandemic would be fed into the amended 
2020/21 budget process.  
 
Another Member commented on the risk associated with financial sustainability, noting 
that the impact of Covid-19 on the MTFS and Corporate Plan would need to be 
adequately assessed using the Council’s Risk Register. A suggestion was given that 
External Audit be asked to consider the Risk Register within its Value for Money work.  
 
Action Point 
 

 The Interim Director of Finance to discuss with External Audit the potential 
to include a review of the Council’s Risk Register within its Value for Money 
work 

 

4



 
 

One Member referred to the significant risk reported with reference to the pension fund 
net liability. He expressed concern that as the current contribution amount was based 
on a valuation made in 2019, there was a risk that the effect of Covid-19 on the stock 
market could require the Council to increase its pension contributions. It was explained 
that any requirement for the Council to change its contributions to the pension fund 
would be factored into the MTFS.  
 
Reference was made to the significant risk identifying the valuation of land and 
buildings. A Councillor asked how the land at St Martin’s Park, Stamford was assessed 
and whether there was an increased financial risk due to the impact of Covid-19. It was 
confirmed that work was continuing to be undertaken to secure potential bidders for the 
site, but as the Council had already put in place financing to meet the holding costs 
using the regeneration reserve, there were no budgetary pressures from the site at 
present.   
 
The Chairman thanked External Audit for its report and confirmed that the Committee 
had reviewed and noted its contents.  
 
46. Internal Audit Progress Report 
 
A representative from RSM presented the Internal Audit progress report. It was 
confirmed that the Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 had now been completed, with six 
assignments having been finalised since the last meeting of the Committee. Substantial 
assurances had been concluded for the assignments in relation to risk management 
and the planning service. Reasonable assurances had been concluded for purchasing 
cards and void management and partial assurances had been concluded for 
procurement and contracts and homelessness. Medium and low priority management 
actions had been agreed with relevant service areas across the audits, with no high 
priority actions raised. Members were asked if they had any questions or comments 
relating to the progress report. 
 

The Chairman read out an email that had been received from the Assistant Director, 
Housing, in response to a question from a member of the Committee regarding the void 
management audit. The email confirmed that as a result of the audit, a Voids Policy was 
being produced and would be considered by the Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee before its adoption.  
 
Members sought confirmation that the Council was on schedule to implement the 
management actions required in respect of the homelessness audit. The Assistant 
Director, Housing confirmed that all of the actions had been implemented, aside from 
the updated Housing Asset Management Strategy, which would be completed by the 
end of July. One Member asked about the extent to which the Council was utilising bed 
and breakfast accommodation as a means of temporary accommodation. It was 
confirmed that although bed and breakfast accommodation was sometimes used during 
periods of escalation in homelessness, the Council was currently able to support the 
provision of temporary accommodation using only its own stock.   
 

5



 
 

The Committee considered the outcome of the procurement and contracts audit. A 
number of Members noted the challenge of managing procurement as an authority-wide 
responsibility. Members suggested that there was potential for the service to be given to 
a centralised group of officers, to standardise the compliance with procedures and 
quality of work undertaken in this area. The Committee was reminded that a new set of 
Contract Procedure Rules had been adopted at Council in January 2020. Officers 
suggested that a period of time be allowed to see the effects of the use of the revised 
set of rules, along with the implemented management actions, after which time the 
service could again be reviewed. The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources 
added that he was committed to improving the performance of procurement and 
contracts, which sat within his portfolio.  
 
Attention then turned to the audit regarding purchasing cards. The Committee asked for 
further information regarding the level of access to purchasing cards. The Interim 
Director of Finance explained that purchasing cards were given to specific officers, who 
were named on their assigned purchasing card and subject to monthly and individual 
spending limits. Members expressed concern regarding a transaction of £740.62 
identified in the report and wished for further information as to what the transaction 
related.  
 
Action Point 
 

 The Committee to be provided with information identifying the reason for a 
purchase card transaction of £740.62 

 
The Chairman confirmed that the report had been reviewed and its contents were noted 
by the Committee. 
 
47. Internal Audit Annual Report 
 
The Committee was presented with the Annual Internal Audit Report for 2019/20. The 
report drew together the individual audit assignments undertaken throughout the year to 
give an audit opinion. An overall adequate opinion had been given, with recognition that 
further enhancements would need to be implemented to ensure that this opinion could 
be maintained going forward. It was highlighted that the audit work for the 2019/20 
period had been completed prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, and as such, the impact of 
the pandemic on the Council and its risk profiles had not been incorporated into the 
audit opinion.  
 

The Committee considered that the opinion was of a level to be expected for Local 
Authorities and gave a balanced assessment of the assignments undertaken.  
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 
 

 To accept the Internal Audit Annual Report and audit opinion for 2019/20 
 
 

6



 
 

48. Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
 
The Internal Auditors then presented their plan for the 2020/21 period. Following the 
presentation of the indicative plan to the Committee at its meeting in December 2019, a 
series of meetings had been arranged to collaborate with key officers across the 
Council and finalise the plan. Following feedback from Members regarding the 
Indicative Plan, the procurement of consultants and agency workers had been added.  
 

Members enquired as to the arrangements for delivering the plan in light of the 
restrictions in place due to Covid-19. The auditors reassured Members that they were 
currently facilitating work on a remote basis. It was recognised that audits in relation to 
primarily paper-based systems would be more challenging to carry out in this manner. 
When the plan had been agreed by the Committee, the audits would be mapped out to 
give priority to those which could be undertaken remotely, leaving those requiring a 
physical presence for later in the year when it was hoped that restrictions would be 
more amenable. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 
 

 That the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 be approved 
 
49. 2019/20 Accounting Policies and changes to the deadline for the 

publication of the Statement of Accounts 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources introduced his report regarding the 
2019/20 Accounting Policies. He explained that the Accounting Policies were reviewed 
annually prior to the preparation of the Statement of Accounts to ensure that they 
complied with the CIPFA Code. The Head of Finance then confirmed that as the 
2019/20 CIPFA Code had only seen minor changes, the Accounting Policies used in the 
production of the 2018/19 accounts had not been amended.  
 

The Committee was informed that key deadlines for the production of the Statement of 
Accounts had been moved by Government Regulations made in response to Covid-19. 
The draft accounts must now be approved by 31 August 2020, with the publication of 
the final audited accounts by 30 November 2020. It was also confirmed that the audit 
scale fee for 2020/21 would remain the same as for the 2019/20 accounts. Members 
were asked if they had any questions relating to the report or the appended Accounting 
Policies.  
 
One Member referred to the termination benefits detailed in the Accounting Policies and 
asked who held responsibility for authorising these benefits. It was confirmed that any 
termination benefits would be processed in accordance with the relevant human 
resources policies, which could be circulated to the Committee. 
 
Action Point: 
 

 The Human Resources Policy relating to the provision of termination 
benefits to be circulated to the Committee 

7



 
 

 
A Member remarked on the Accounting Policies relating to the leasing of the Council’s 
assets and asked whether it was anticipated that contingency provisions would need to 
be made due to the impact of Covid-19. The Head of Finance explained that the 
potential for challenges in this area would be most likely to fall in the current financial 
year or moving forward. Reassurance was given that a regular assessment of the 
impact of Covid-19 was being undertaken to ensure that any issues could be identified 
and addressed. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 
 

 That the Accounting Policies be approved for use in the production of the 
2019/20 Statement of Accounts 

 
50. Risk Management Framework - proposed changes 
 
The Interim Director of Finance presented the report on the proposed changes to the 
Risk Management Framework. When the changes had initially been proposed to the 
Committee at its meeting in December, Members had requested further assurance that 
the current Corporate Risks had been assimilated in the move across to a Strategic 
Risk Register. The migration of Corporate Risks had been mapped out in Appendix 1 to 
the report. Another proposed change was to introduce risk appetite alongside the 
Strategic Risks. This was intended to highlight where the Council may wish to push 
itself further in the pursuance of corporate aims, and conversely, where strong internal 
controls and therefore a minimal risk appetite were required. The Committee was given 
the opportunity to ask any questions relating to the report or the appended documents.  
 

One Member asked if it was necessary to have a ‘minimal’ category of risk within the 
three categories of risk appetite (minimal, cautious and open). It was explained that the 
‘minimal’ category had been included as there were areas where full compliance was 
required financially and legally in order for the Council to fulfil its statutory duties, 
including its control framework and checks and balances.  
 
A question was asked relating to the Corporate Plan and how the adoption of this later 
in the year would impact on the Strategic Risks. Officers acknowledged that a Corporate 
Plan was required to feed into the Strategic Risks and focus the risk appetite on areas 
where the Council wished to be ‘open’ such as growth and transformation. Some of the 
risks were currently high level descriptions, but would become more defined once 
structured against the Corporate Plan. Members felt that it was important that the two 
documents align and that the Strategic Risks be responsive to new and emerging risks. 
The Interim Director of Finance confirmed that the overall aim was to develop a dynamic 
and responsive framework with a focus on bigger Strategic Risks that were positioned in 
such a way that, whilst the headings would remain largely the same, the factors 
comprising the risk would be regularly reviewed and updated in response to change. A 
revised matrix could be brought back to the Committee when the Corporate Plan had 
been agreed.  
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 

8



 
 

 

 To approve the adoption of the Strategic Risks  
 
51. Work Programme 
 
The Chairman explained that a work programme had been introduced as a standing 
agenda item to allow the Committee to consider upcoming items. As the programme 
had been developed prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, adjustments would need to be 
made to accommodate revised deadlines. When the annual programme of meetings 
had been finalised, a revised work programme would be presented to the Committee at 
its next meeting. The Vice Chairman requested that the Corporate Governance Report 
be added to the work programme.   
 
52. Close of the meeting 
 
The meeting closed at 16:26.  
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
23 July 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources 

           

 

Counter Fraud Annual Report 2019-20 

One of the key areas for Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is to 
monitor and review the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.   

 

 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 7 July 2020 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 8 July 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources  

10 July 2020 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the contents of this 
report including the proposed workplan for 2020-21. 

11

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee it is a requirement to produce 

an annual report on the counter fraud arrangements in place and the activities undertaken.  

Counter fraud is fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives.  The 

report being presented covers the financial year 2019-20 and details the various aspects of 

work delivered during the course of the year.  

2 Summary of position 

2.1 The Council is committed to the highest standards of quality, probity, openness and 

accountability. As part of the Committee’s terms of reference, counter fraud is one of the 

key areas of focus being an essential element of delivering good governance. In order to 

develop and promote greater awareness, and in line with best practice, a review of the 

Council’s counter fraud arrangements has been undertaken, culminating in this Annual 

Report for 2019-20. This report sets out the key outcomes from the counter fraud work 

delivered during the year relating to both welfare/benefit fraud and non-welfare/benefit fraud.  

2.2 Like any organisation South Kesteven District Council is inherently vulnerable to the risk of 

fraud and corruption.  With reducing Government funding and the current economic position, 

it is vital that robust arrangements for the prevention and detection of fraud are maintained 

and best use of information and knowledge is made in order to ensure effective fraud 

prevention procedures are in place. 

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership 

2.3 With an emphasis on developing a ‘first line of defence’ in tackling fraud, the Partnership; 

which consists of all the councils within Lincolnshire, continues to improve fraud resilience 

across Lincolnshire by co-ordinating targeted fraud awareness campaigns; sharing fraud 

intelligence, best practice and expertise; delivering savings and making effective use of 

resources.   

2.4 Extensive and varied communication channels have been used to promote fraud awareness 

across a wide audience and increased whistleblowing traffic is evidence that this is working 

well. 

2.5 The Council continues to actively contribute to the work of the Partnership. The 

Partnership’s key outcomes in 2019-20 include: 

− Business case developed for an invest to save project which highlights scope to 
deliver Council Tax recoveries of £10.5m. Further information in respect of this can 
be found in 2.6 

− Supporting roll out of the Fraud Awareness elearning across Lincolnshire (licence 
extended to 2021) 

− Regular liaison and sharing of information on scams, alerts, fraud cases  

Fraud elearning 

2.6 Council officers were asked to complete fraud elearning during Autumn 2019 and will be 

asked to undertake the training again within 2020-21. This training is an integral element of 

the corporate training programme. Members, as part of their training programme, will also 

be asked to undertake the fraud elearning. 

 

12



 

 
 

National Fraud Initiative 

2.7 Since 1996 the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) every two years (every year for Council Tax 

Single Person Discount) undertake a compulsory national data exercise.  The NFI data is 

provided by some 1,300 participating organisations from across both public and private 

sectors including The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP), Home Office, Companies 

House and many others. It consists of 23 different data sources containing over a third of a 

billion records. These include police authorities, local probation boards, fire and rescue 

authorities as well as local councils. 

2.8 It is a tool that is helpful in assisting local authorities to identify potential fraud in areas such 

as council tax, housing benefit, pensions, payroll, creditors and housing tenancy and since 

1996 the programme has helped identify over £1 billion in fraud or error.  

2.9 The Council Tax Single Person Discount matches were released in late February 2020 and 

identified 3,662 matches, which is an increase on the previous year. However, due to the 

impact of Covid and the inevitable pressure put on available resources, the investigation of 

the matches has been delayed. The Council is moving into the recovery phase and so 

resources will be made available in the coming weeks to undertake the investigation work. 

2.10 The next full data matching exercise is due to be undertaken imminently with the data upload 

scheduled for October/November 2020. Resources will be allocated to support the 

investigations, as required. 

Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support Fraud  

2.11 Fraud cases are identified in numerous different ways with referrals coming from various 

sources. A primary channel is through joint working with the Department of Work and 

Pensions. The Council is currently undertaking joint working arrangements on several cases 

where there has been an allegation of fraud against a claimant within the district that is 

claiming Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Discount. Fraud cases can also be referred 

from other departments within the Council. This could include, but is not limited to, the 

Income Recovery Team, Visiting Officers or Housing Officers.  It is also possible for referrals 

to come from other authorities. Whistleblowing from members of the public also plays a 

crucial part in combatting fraud within the Housing Benefit system. Referrals can be made 

online, via email and via the phone.   

Summary of Housing Benefit Overpayments for 2019-20: 

Number of invoices raised  Amount of debt Amount recovered 

490 £561,765 £377,135 

Single Person Discount (SPD) 

2.12 For Council tax purposes residents can apply for Single Person Discount (SPD) should they 

be the sole occupier of a property. Residents who wish to apply for SPD are asked to 

complete a declaration confirming that they are the only adult resident in the property and 

that they are eligible to claim the discount.  

2.13 The Council’s primary approach for checking SPD entitlement is to participate biennially in 

a county wide counter fraud review alongside all Lincolnshire authorities. The process for 

this includes taking a data extract from the Council Tax records of accounts in receipt of 

SPD.  This data is then put through a screening process to identify accounts which may be 

13



 

 
 

claiming SPD, where they are not entitled to, highlighting accounts where contact is needed. 

The next review was due to start in April 2020 but unfortunately, due to the impact of 

Coronavirus, it has been delayed and is now likely to start in April 2021. 

2.14 Partnership resource is progressing the business case proposals for alternative approaches 

to the current bi-annual SPD bulk review. This is driven by opportunity for further reductions 

in the levels of Council Tax revenue, lost to fraud or error, when SPDs are incorrectly 

granted or not cancelled following a change in household circumstances. This proposed 

new approach was placed on hold due to the impact of Coronavirus – the tender was due 

to go out Summer 2020 but will now be deferred until Summer 2021.  Moving to a continuous 

rolling review is expected to increase revenue collection by reducing the time between loss 

of entitlement to SPD and detection date of the fraud or error, ensuring incorrect SPDs are 

removed sooner, and this will be strongly recommended. 

2.15 Under current arrangements, and with a rolling review, intelligence and experience of other 

local authorities, shows that some of the SPD removals will continue to be paid, or be 

subsequently re-instated, following contact from claimants where it was shown they had 

deliberately lied, upon review, in order to maintain their discount.   

2.16 In addition to the proposed continuous review, the business proposal will include cost/ 

benefit analysis of further options to use a fraud referrals service to identify historic cases 

for revenue collection and options to pursue sanctions, including prosecution. Use of such 

a fraud referrals service provides all the information needed to demonstrate strong grounds 

to challenge those claimants who appear to have deliberately lied to maintain their discount 

or exemption. Local Authority information it holds about claimants is cross-matched with 

other data sources – highlighting anomalies (such as evidence of other adults living at the 

property) and pinpointing cases to be investigated further. Whilst this could increase 

collection rates, and sanctions would act as a future fraud deterrent, pursuing such cases 

does have the potential to cause reputational damage and prosecution success is not 

guaranteed.   

Whistleblowing investigations 

2.17 Lincolnshire County Council manages the Confidential Reporting Line on behalf of the fraud 

Partnership and acts as a central point of contact. An analysis of district related referrals 

made to the Reporting Line during 2019-20 identified that 125 referrals were received (102 

in 2018/19).   

2.18 The main type of referrals in 2019-20 relate to council tax and housing tenancy fraud - 

whistleblowing traffic is an indicator that fraud awareness is reaching a wider audience.  Of 

the 125 referrals received by Assurance Lincolnshire, 41 were for this Council. All 41 

whistleblowing allegations have been investigated and action taken where appropriate. This 

is an increase on previous years as shown below:  

 

Year Number of allegations 

2017-18 19 

2018-19 35 

2019-20 41 

 

14



 

 
 

Summary of whistleblowing allegations received 2019-20: 

Type of allegation No. Outcome 

Benefits/Council Tax 12 No further action and/or referred to DWP  

Tenancy/Property 16 No further action required and/or monitoring 

Licensing  2 No further action required and/or monitoring 

Other  4 No further action required and/or monitoring 

Staffing related matters  7 Investigated under the appropriate policy – see note below 

 

2.19 Sometimes the Council receives whistleblowing allegations from either staff (usually 

anonymous), or from members of the public, in respect of staff. Of the seven allegations 

reported above, all were investigated outside of the Whistleblowing Policy under the relevant 

HR policy or procedure.  Four were investigated under the Grievance Policy; one was moved 

to the Complaints process; one was actioned under the Disciplinary Policy and one was 

found to be an unfounded allegation. 

Action Plan for 2020-21 

Action By when Owner 

1) Counter Fraud Strategy 

Review of the Counter Fraud Strategy including 
the Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti Money 
Laundering Policy and Guidance 

March 
2021 

Governance & Risk Officer  

2) Fraud Awareness including elearning 

Continue to raise awareness amongst staff, 
stakeholders and partners about the risk of 
fraud in all areas of the Council’s business 

Fraud elearning to be monitored to ensure 
completion  

December 
2020 

Governance & Risk Officer  

3) National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

Continuing the commitment to the NFI data 
matching exercises 

October 
2020 

onwards 

Governance & Risk Officer  

Heads of Service 

4) Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership 

Contributing to the work of the Partnership by 
supporting the delivery of their action plan 
including keeping abreast of national 
developments in counter fraud work  

2020-21 
Governance & Risk Officer  

Revenues & Benefits Manager 

5) Housing Benefit Investigations 

Continue to support DWP Housing Benefit 
investigations 

2020-21 Revenues & Benefits Manager 

 

3 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

3.1 None 

15



 

 
 

4 Reasons for the Recommendation 

4.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference; 11.5.4(iv) To approve 

the Counter Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Framework, including Whistleblowing Policy and 

Anti-Money Laundering Policy, should monitor and review the counter fraud arrangements 

currently in place and the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks. 

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 None 

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 The report, including the action plan for 2020/21 within the report, are to be welcomed from 

a governance and legal perspective, as they represent effective ways of identifying and 

dealing with counter fraud.  Members should note the performance and scrutinise any 

elements to assist the role of the Governance and Audit Committee 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Services 

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 None 

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 None 

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 None 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

11.1 The recommendation will have a neutral effect of the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Other Implications (where significant)  

12.1 None 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by Not applicable 

Final Decision date   23 July 2020 

 

16



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

23 July 2020 

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley 
  Cabinet Member for Commercial 

and Operations 

           

 

Health and Safety Annual Report 2019/20 

This report presents the Health and Safety Annual Report 2019/20. It provides an overview of 
South Kesteven District Council’s (the Council) management of health and safety arrangements to 
both its employees and its customers. It summarises the progress made and identifies key areas 
of focus to ensure the Council maintains its health and safety performance. 

 

 

Report Author 

Philip Swinton, Corporate Compliance Officer for Health and Safety 

 
01476 406555 

 p.swinton @southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Ian Yates, Assistant Director, Commercial and 
Operations 

22 June 2020 

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director, Commercial and 
Operations 

24 June 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations 

14 July 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. Review the attached Health and Safety Annual Report for the period 2019/20  

2. Note the key areas of focus 

3. Give comments or feedback to assist with maintaining the effectiveness of the    
Council’s health and safety arrangements 

17

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Health and Safety Annual report 2019/20 (attached at Appendix A) demonstrates that 

the Council’s health and safety performance remains satisfactory, however it is important 

that the Council continues to review, monitor and improve, wherever practical, its 

arrangements and practices. Members will be aware that the organisation provides a varied 

range of services, with inherently high-risk activities, and in challenging and changing 

environments. The report details these arrangements along with annual performance and 

sets out how the Council intends to move forward in the future. 

1.2 Overall, the annual report shows there are no significant changes in performance but there 

has been a small reduction in the number of accidents. Whilst the focus is on reducing 

accidents, wherever possible, it is recognised that accidents are likely to happen in an 

organisation, which is of similar size and in nature to the Council. 

1.3 Key areas for focus for next year are :- 

• Continued audit of risk assessments and procedures 

• The audit of the control of substances hazardous to health 

• Monitoring and audit of accident reporting and health and safety culture 

1.4 It is worth noting that the World Health Organisation declared a global pandemic, towards 

the very end of the period 2019/20, on the 11 March 2020.  Alongside the Council’s own 

emergency and business continuity response, the Council’s health and safety approach and 

arrangements were enacted to ensure that the public and staff were protected.  Risk 

assessments were carried out which resulted in some services being closed to the public, 

service changes, the introduction of mitigation measures and the distribution of PPE 

(Personal Protective Equipment), where appropriate. 

1.5 Within a very short time frame the Council was able to support significant numbers of staff, 

both with equipment and health and welfare guidance; including self-assessment checks, 

tips on using household items to customise work areas and links to online demonstration 

videos. This allowed staff to safely operate from home while maintaining services the public 

rely upon. 

1.6 The sites and services that remained open were made Covid secure as soon as practical 

and additional stores of sanitisers, wipes and personal protective equipment were acquired 

to allow these services to operate safely. Support documents were produced to explain 

Government guidance to staff who remained operational throughout the lockdown period. 

For example, the Street Scene team developed new arrangements to maintain social 

distancing in what is a busy work area and “family units” to keep crews together to limit staff 

mixing in this essential service. 

1.7 Risk assessments and guidance are regularly reviewed and staff are briefed on any relevant 

changes, providing them with up to date information. Frequent email updates were sent to 

all staff and Members advising on welfare, mental health and a range of other issues. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1  This report invites comments from the Members of the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 

 

18



 

 
 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 No other options. This report is provided to Members for their information on an annual 

basis. 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 To note the contents of this report and give any feedback, where appropriate to assist the 

senior management to continue to support and achieve the robust health and safety 

arrangements for the Council. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 Failure to manage health and safety may have a detrimental impact and any incidents could 

lead to people suffering from serious ill health and injury, which could have been avoided.  

Also, legal actions may be taken against the Council, in the event of any such incidents.  

Legal actions can impose both financial and reputational risks to the Council. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The actions and implications within the report will be actioned and communication will be 

made with the relevant departments’ senior officers. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 Members are reminded that the terms of reference for Governance and Audit Committee 

include the responsibility to review the annual report and assess the effectiveness of the 

Council’s health and safety arrangements. Risk management and health and safety are 

closely linked.  Control measures and preventative measures must be regularly reviewed to 

ensure they are operating effectively. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (as amended) (the Act) along with supporting 

regulations, covers occupational health and safety in workplaces in Great Britain. The Act 

sets out the duties, which the Council has in respect of its employees and those who may 

be affected by its work activities. The annual report sets out an overview of the Council’s 

approach to health and safety issues. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 The impact of Covid19 on the BAME Community (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) and 

those identified by the Government, during the pandemic, within vulnerable categories must 

be considered in all future assessments in addition to any other protected characteristics. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

this report. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None identified.  

19



 

 
 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 There are limited implications for the Council’s declaration of climate emergency, however 

the increased procurement and disposal of PPE needed to operate throughout the 

pandemic does provide a small increase in the Council’s carbon footprint. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None identified. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Health and Safety Report 2018/19 

14.2 Minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee, 21 June 2019  

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A Health and Safety Annual Report 2019/20 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)  

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

21 June 2019 

Final Decision date   23 July 2020 

 

20

http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MID=3758#AI22955
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MID=3758#AI22955


      

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Corporate Health and Safety 
 Annual Report 

 

2019 -2020 

 Author: Philip Swinton 

 Corporate Health & Safety Officer 

   Date:July 2020 
 
 
 
21

Appendix A



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 2 of 14 
2019-2020   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 Executive Summary 3 

2.0 Corporate Health and Safety Role 3 

3.0 Health and Safety Training 5 

4.0 Accidents and Incidents 6 

5.0 Health and Safety Performance Measures 10 

6.0 Health and Safety Strategy ‘going forward 2019-2021’ 10 

7.0 Outsourced Leisure Centre Accident Statistics 12 

 

 

LIST OF TABLES, CHARTS & FIGURES 

Figure  1 -   Plan, Do, Check, Act 4 

Chart  A  -   Trend in Accidents by service area 7 

Table 1   -   Comparison by accident type 2018/19 – 2019/20 8 

Table 2   -   Riddor Summary of Accidents Reported 9 

Table 3   -   Health & Safety Target Performance Indicator 10 

Chart B   -   Leisure Centre Accident & Incident Numbers 13 

Table 4   -   Leisure Centre Accident Rates (over 5 years) 14 

  

 

 

 

22



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 3 of 14 
2019-2020   

INTRODUCTION 

 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This report provides an overview of South Kesteven District Council’s Health and Safety performance during 

2019/20 financial year. It identifies strengths and highlights opportunities for improvement to existing safety 

procedures.  

 

The health and safety performance of the Council remains satisfactory and accident numbers have reduced in 

several areas. There is an open investigation following an incident which involved contractors; this is 

acknowledged in section 4. 

 

The Council must continue to work towards the Health and Safety Management Model (HSG 65) with the Check 

and Act sections being an important feature to ensure plans and actions are suitable and appropriate. 

 

Actions identified for the future include the ongoing work to improve the health and safety culture within SKDC 

and this must involve reinforcing the need for health and safety to be recognised as an integral part of business 

decisions and projects. 

 

1.1 The Health and Safety Management Approach 
 

The Cabinet set the direction for health and safety and it is important that Members are involved, as health and 

safety responsibility is associated to all Council undertakings. The Corporate Management Team will remain 

responsible for ensuring sufficient time and resources, making sure these are available to the Council officers in 

order to fulfil health and safety responsibilities and provide staff with any additional support. Members and staff 

at every level retain a moral, legal and financial obligation to adhere and actively support Health and Safety. 

 

2.0 CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY ROLE 
 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team role remains unchanged. It provides support, advice and guidance to all 

officers and Members of the Council on matters of health, safety and welfare but also to seek out and highlight 

for improvement any weaknesses within the Council’s approach and handling of Health and Safety matters.  

 

The Plan, Do, Check, Act cycle, which was raised in last year’s report, follows the HSE (Health and Safety 

Executive) guidance on Management of Health and Safety; this is the next step in moving the Council towards an 

integrated systems accreditation. 

 

The approach remains to support and encourage the culture change which stands a far greater chance of 

success if staff are included in the journey rather than simply told to comply. 

23



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 4 of 14 
2019-2020   

 

2.1 How Health and Safety Risks aim to be controlled within the Council 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Figure 1 – Plan, Do, Check, Act 

 

2.2 Plan, Do, Check, Act 
 

• Plan:  
Where is the authority now and where does it need to be? 

 

• Do: 
Assess the risk, organise the activities and ensure adequate resource. 

 

• Check: 
Monitor activities and processes, audit them for weakness and strengths, and promote good practice. 

 

• Act: 
Review findings from monitoring and audits, including lessons from accident investigation and implement 

actions identified. 

 

2.3 Focussed Activity  
 

The assessment of risk will always be an area of focus and is primary in providing safety assurance and 

continued compliance with relevant legislation in order to ensure the safety of all affected. This process 

24



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 5 of 14 
2019-2020   

identifies the risks, which officers face, the risk posed to others by actions and the controls and procedures that 

need to be in place to reduce or remove that risk. 

 

Management of fire safety throughout Council owned and operated buildings is another area that must be 

continually monitored and updated. A program to review and update fire risk assessments has been 

commissioned and is underway. Fire safety arrangements and training are in place, the danger is managed, but 

the potential risk to life and property require constant vigilance and scrutiny. 

 

The need to work differently during the Covid pandemic has seen an unprecedented number of staff home 

working. This significant change has produced a number of challenges and opportunities that continue to be 

monitored and supported.  In order to ensure the best possible support for services to continue long term, new 

guidance has been created. 

 

2.4 Higher Risk Operational Areas 
 

By the nature of the work performed and the number of staff and vehicles deployed the Waste and DWO teams 

continue to be designated as higher risk areas. Both teams have high levels of control in place for their activities, 

but the risk and severity of incident related to their activities dictates that the work receives regular and close 

scrutiny to maintain the standards expected. 

 

DWO  are in the early stages of a project to reduce the risk from noise and vibration ill health related to power 

tool use and Corporate Health and Safety are supporting this process.  

 

Use of contractors is an area of exposure where the Council must focus attention. The authority must increase 

monitoring of these activities to assure a high standard of safety and compliance, which is expected by South 

Kesteven District Council.  The contracting of work does not discharge the Council from its duties and it must 

ensure that works are completed safely and this is documented. If not managed effectively there is a clear 

financial and reputational risk in addition to the moral obligation to ensure the safe undertaking of activities. 

 

3.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY TRAINING 
 

Training remains essential and is a legal requirement to ensure employees work safely and provides 

management with a level of assurance that their teams are health and safety competent and confident in their 

roles. Employee training needs are identified in one to ones, as well as previously defined training required for a 

particular role. Both e-learning and classroom based training is provided. 

 

As with previous years, Corporate Health and Safety organised the following training during 2019/20.  

 

• Health and Safety – induction for new employees 

• Workstation Safety Plus – mandatory training for all display screen equipment users 

• Fire Safety Plus – mandatory fire safety awareness training for all new employees 

• Fire Warden – refresher fire warden training needs for all Council workplace premises 

• First Aid – refresher first aid training 

• Trained trainers in evacuation chair use 

• Conflict resolution training is provided as identified and required 

 

25



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 6 of 14 
2019-2020   

Additional online training packages are being explored to further support the large number of home working 

staff as a result of the Covid 19 outbreak. 

 

4.0 ACCIDENTS AND INCIDENTS 
 

Services are responsible for reporting, recording and investigating accidents and incidents that occur within 

their own service area and any involving the public.  In significant incidents, Corporate Health and Safety may 

assume the lead on the investigation. The Council must identify the root cause of an incident and reduce the 

likelihood of reoccurrence. All health and safety incidents must be submitted to Corporate Health and Safety, 

who oversee a central database and provide assurance to the Council that suitable and sufficient investigations 

are taking place, proportionate to the level of incident. 

 

4.1 Accident and Incident Trends 
 

The number of accidents reported across the authority has reduced again this year and shows a drop this 

financial year for Direct Works and Street scene, both of which are recognised higher risk areas. 

 

Manual handling and slip, trip or fall incidents remain the main cause of incidences across the authority. There 

have been 18 in total for both categories. With over 600 staff employed and almost 200 of these in higher risk 

areas this figure does not give cause for concern. The number and type of accident must continue to be 

monitored and improvement sought whenever possible, however, these figures are encouraging and also 

support the view made last year that accident rates are accurate. 

 

There has been a significant incident involving Council contractors. There has been a disturbance of ACM 

(Asbestos containing material) as a result of the works being performed on site. This incident is currently under 

investigation by the HSE and no conclusions can be made while this is ongoing. 

 

4.2 Accident and Incident Numbers and Charts 
 

Chart A shows the number of reported accidents/incidents over the last 3 years for internal Council work related 

activities.  

 

In Table 1 is a breakdown of the most common and significant accident types. Slip, trip and manual handling 

accidents have seen a small increase and there was one significant injury, which also resulted in the increase in 

lost person hours in Table 3. 

The “other” category remains a collection of low-level incidents, which while reported do not provide serious 

concern. These include minor cuts, a trapped finger and a nosebleed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 7 of 14 
2019-2020   

 

 
 

 

 

Chart A - This chart shows the accident numbers by service areas over the last 3 years 
 

27



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 8 of 14 
2019-2020   

 

CATEGORY 2018/19 % OF TOTAL 2019/20 % OF TOTAL 

Slips, trips and falls 4 8 11 27 

Manual handling 5 10 7 17 

Struck against fixed/stationary object 1 2 0 0 

Struck by moving vehicle 1 2 0 0 

Injured by an animal 1 2 0 0 

Violence and abuse 3 6 0 0 

Vehicle incidents 12 24 10 24 

Serious Injury / Multiple Injury 0 0 1 2 

Other 23 46 12 29 

TOTALS 50   41   

 

 Table 1 - Comparison by accident type 2018/19 – 2019/20 

 

 

28



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 9 of 14 
2019-2020   

4.3 Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 
 

RIDDOR regulations require certain specified accidents, ill health and dangerous occurrences to be 

reported to the relevant enforcing authority, being the Health and Safety Executive (HSE).  The 

Council’s number of reportable incidents under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous 

Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR)   

 

The Council was required to report 19 incidents this financial year.  Sixteen of these are linked to the 

Riverside housing incident as identified in line 1 of the table below 

 

RIDDOR REPORTED 
 

 

ACCIDENT  REPORTED RIDDOR TRIGGER 
PERSONS 
AFFECTED/EXPOSED 

DESCRIPTION OF 
INJURY 

HAZARD TYPE 

24-05-2019 14-11-2019 
Dangerous 
Occurrence (x 16) 

Member of Public 
Disturbance of 
confirmed Asbestos 
containing material  

Release of 
substance x 16 

28-05-2019 17-06-2019 Over 7 Days Employee 
Fractured foot - Fell 
off curb pulling bin 
backwards 

Manual 
Handling 

18-06-2019 18-06-2019 
Dangerous 
Occurrence 

Member of Public 
CO -Potential 
exposure -non 
confirmed 

Release of 
substance 

01-07-2019 01-07-2019 
Hospital - Serious 
Injury  (144 Days 
off work) 

Employee 

Multiple injuries : 
dislocation right wrist, 
dislocated arm and  
head trauma 

Struck by 
moving 
vehicle 

 

Table 2 – Riddor summary of accidents reported 
 

 

4.4 Leisure Centres 
 

The Leisure Centres at Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and The Deepings are all contracted to ‘1 Life’ 

who have the operational responsibilities for health, safety and welfare for both its employees and 

the facilities they provide to customers. The Council’s responsibilities are to monitor contract 

performance and the Facilities Team performs this as part of their remit. Accident and incident 

numbers secured by facilities are included as part of monitoring and are provided in this report for 

information. (See Appendix A)  

 

 

29



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 10 of 14 
2019-2020   

5.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
 

A number of performance measures were previously set to identify strengths and weaknesses in 

systems and processes.  A quarterly dashboard of performance indicators are shared with Heads of 

Service at the health and safety meetings specific to accidents/incidents and quarterly monitoring 

activities. 

 
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY TARGET/PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR 

2017/18  2018/19 2019/20 

Staff attendance at Corporate Health & Safety induction 100% 100% 100% 

Number of staff RIDDOR notifications to the enforcing 
authority 

9 3 19 

Number of staff lost days as the result of accidents 
(based upon information received) 

140 93 184.5 

 

Table 3 - Target Performance Indicators 
 

 

6.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY STRATEGY GOING FORWARD 2020-2021 
 

The subjects identified last year and programmed in for 2020 have not changed. These topics are 

important to the approach of Plan, Do, Check, Act and will help the authority to meet its 

responsibility and duty of care.   

High-risk operational areas will receive greater scrutiny as they will by their very nature present 

significant opportunity for incident. However, the authority must continue to proportionately apply 

the same policies and procedures of safety to all aspects of work.  Even those believed to be low risk 

have the potential for harm if neglected. 

 

The impact of Covid 19 will require additional focus in some key areas.  Consideration must be given 

to staff who are part of the BAME community or are in the vulnerable/ extremely vulnerable 

30



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 11 of 14 
2019-2020   

categories given the documented increased risk they face. The adaptation of buildings and increased 

mitigation to protect both staff and the public will also be an ongoing consideration as information 

and guidance continues to develop 

 

6.1 Audit 
 

Internal and external audits, according to the level of risk and service area are conducted in order to 

identify strengths and weaknesses. They also assist in ensuring that actions required for 

improvement are implemented inside agreed time periods. Audits form a key stage of any 

management plan so are another constant feature. Both COSHH and standard Risk assessments will 

be audited in the coming year. 

 

6.2 Review and provision of guidance  
 

The Corporate Health and Safety Team provide and maintain a range of guidance documents to 

support Managers and staff. All guidance is up to date and new guidance has been produced for the 

management of home workers. The number of current home workers constitutes a significant 

number of the workforce and has been made a priority. 

 

6.3 Health & Safety Culture 
 

The health and safety culture within any organisation is extremely important as it defines how all 

employees will behave, operate and ultimately provide an understanding and perspective on how 

important health and safety really is, from the top of the organisation down to operational 

employees. The corporate team are working with staff at every level and Unions to encourage and 

develop this.  

 

6.4 Risk Assessment and Control 
 

Risk assessments are a legal requirement and are an integral part of the identification of hazards and 

the controls needed to minimise or remove the likelihood of incident and injury. They have 

therefore been a key area of focus and will remain a constant feature. 

 

Because of the Covid-19 pandemic, risk assessments from many service areas but specifically Waste, 

DWO, Housing and Environmental Health have been under constant review and are evolving to 

reflect national guidance and restrictions. For the wider Council, this also includes the use of 

buildings as the Council moves through the outbreak. 

 

As a result, the Council’s assessments have been under greater scrutiny than before and the Council 

has resourced and supported this process ensuring that staff at every level understand the process 

and where necessary are challenging areas to ensure improvement and compliance. 

 

6.5 Accident and Near Miss Reporting 
 

Accident reporting, including incident and near miss reporting, helps the Council to identify any 

potential gaps in policies, training and controls ensuring the Council can learn from strengthen its 

responses and further reduce the chance of injury, ill health and accidents.  

 

31



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 12 of 14 
2019-2020   

Accident numbers have reduced in the higher risk areas and seen only a small increase across the 

rest of the authority. There have been no near miss reports received this year. Near miss reports are 

a key tool in further reducing the number of accidents. 

 

Recent audits on accident reporting have shown that the Council has a robust procedure in place but 

have highlighted a weakness in response times for accidents being investigated and reported to the 

Corporate Team by service areas. This is being addressed and will continue to be monitored and 

actioned with both internal and external review. 

 

6.6 Monitoring of all Council activities 
 

Higher risk service areas continue to monitor their own activities on a regular basis to ensure 

compliance, identify good or bad practice and implement corrective actions where required. From 

next year, the Corporate Health and Safety Team plans to perform random spot checks on these 

areas for compliance and best practice. 

A review into the use of lone worker devices was performed and following a change in ways of 

working the number of devices has been reduced without any impact on safety. This provided a  

saving to the Council but of more benefit is the clear demonstration that by regularly reviewing and 

examining how it works the Council can continue to ensure best use of resources. 

 

6.7 Council’s Health and Safety Policies 
 

The Council’s safety policies are its statement of intent. They set out the continued commitment of 

the organisation on matters of health and safety and to providing the time and resources necessary 

for the control of risk, so far as is reasonably practicable. 

 

All policies maintained and supported by Corporate Health and Safety are up to date and will not 

require review until 2020/21. 

 

7.0 OUTSOURCED LEISURE CENTRE ACCIDENT STATISTICS 
 

The chart below (CHART B) shows a direct year-on-year comparison of accident numbers for each 

Leisure Centre.  

 

The centres in Bourne, Stamford and Market Deeping all saw a reduction in accident numbers (Table 

4). As noted there are only 10 months of figures due to the Covid-19 outbreak closures but the 

numbers ares still encouragingly low and consistent with previous years. The centre in Grantham 

saw a small increase in incidents but these are minor level incidents and again the accident rate is 

consistent with previous years. 

32



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 13 of 14 
2019-2020   

 

Chart B 

(NB.  Figures are only up to the end of February 2020 because Leisure Centres closed on the 17 March 2020 due to Covid-19, with all but 1 or 2 staff across the 4 sites furloughed 

and remain closed at the moment).   

 

33



Health and Safety Annual Report  Page 14 of 14 
2019-2020   

LEISURE CENTRE ACCIDENT RATES (OVER 5 YEARS) 

 

Footfall per Incident 2019 - 20  Footfall per Incident 2018 - 19  Footfall per Incident 2017 - 18 

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

Bourne 176,591 100 1766 0.06  Bourne 191,518 128 1496 0.07  Bourne 182,871 84 2177 0.05 

Deepings 251,485 92 2734 0.04  Deepings 283,782 174 1631 0.06  Deepings 282,721 198 1428 0.07 

Stamford 142,577 50 2852 0.04  Stamford 159,632 71 2248 0.04  Stamford 156,164 53 2946 0.03 

Grantham 598,569 138 4337 0.02  Grantham 663,732 100 6637 0.02  Grantham 668,745 158 4233 0.02 

                       

Total 1169222 380 3077 0.03  Total 1298664 473 2746 0.04  Total 1290501 493 2618 0.04 

                 

Footfall per Incident 2016 - 17  Footfall per Incident 2015 - 16   

Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

 Area Footfall Accidents 
Visitors 

per 
Accident 

% 
Rates 

      

Bourne 173404 67 2588 0.04  Bourne 159832 110 1453 0.07       

Deepings 257439 222 1160 0.09  Deepings 230384 249 925 0.11       

Stamford 141425 79 1790 0.06  Stamford 121951 80 1524 0.07       

Grantham 662640 185 3582 0.03  Grantham 613686 212 2895 0.03       

                     

Total 1234908 553 2233 0.04  Total 1125853 651 1729 0.06       
 

Table 4 

(NB.  Figures are only up to the end of February 2020 because Leisure Centres closed on the 17 March 2020 due to Covid-19, with all but 1 or 2 staff across the 4 sites furloughed 

and remain closed at the moment).  

34



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
23 July 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources 

           

 

Risk Management and Business Continuity         
Annual Report 2019-20   

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Committee, it is a requirement to produce an annual 
report on the risk management and business continuity arrangements in place. Risk management 
and business continuity are fundamental to the Council’s achievement of its strategic objectives.  
This report relates to the financial year 2019-20 and summarises the work delivered during this 
period.   

 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  6 July 2020 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 9 July 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

10 July 2020 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report. 

35

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Two of the key areas for the Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of 

reference, is to monitor and review the risk management and business continuity 

arrangements in place and, the activities that are being undertaken to assess the 

effectiveness of those arrangements.  

2 Risk Management Annual Report 

The Risk Management Framework 

2.1 The current Risk Management Framework 2018-20 was revised and approved by 

Governance and Audit Committee at its meeting on 20 September 2018. The Framework 

provides details of the risk environment the Council operates within, and the controls and 

mechanisms that are in place, to ensure risk is sufficiently managed by officers and 

Members. Throughout the period of 2019-20, the risk management activities have been 

undertaken in accordance with the Framework.   

2.2 The Risk Management Framework will be reviewed in 2020-21 following the approval of the 

adoption of a strategic risk register by the Committee on 4 June 2020. As part of further 

alignment, the Council’s approach to risk scoring will be reviewed to better reflect the 

Council’s risk appetite. This will be undertaken as part of the annual review of the Risk 

Management Framework. 

Risk Management Internal Audit 

2.3 Internal Audit undertook a review of the Risk Management Framework in December 2019 

as part of the Internal Audit Plan 2019-20. The review resulted in substantial assurance and 

the report was presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 4 June 2020. 

Risk Management Group 

2.4 The Risk Management Group, consisting of all Heads of Service (or their representative) 

plus other key officers, and chaired by the Governance & Risk Officer, met twice during the 

year, to discuss issues relating to risk management, internal audit, insurance, counter fraud, 

governance, procurement, business continuity and safeguarding. 

Service Risk Register  

2.5 An exercise to review the risks was undertaken in October 2019. The assessment 

considered if: 

• all the previous risks identified were still relevant; 

• those risks were being managed and what controls were in place; 

• there were any emerging risks that needed to be included. 

2.6 The review covered both the ‘business as usual’ and ‘exceptional’ risks. Exceptional risks 

are those which scored highly or a new risk to the Service, which is causing concern and as 

such the risk will be included on the Exceptional Service Risk Register. These identified 

risks are discussed at the Risk Management Group. 

2.7 Heads of Service were also asked to review and identify any service risks as a result of the 

impact of the Coronavirus. This review exercise started at the end of March 2020 and 

concluded early April 2020, with Heads of Service reporting no major concerns. 

 

36



 

 
 

Corporate Risk Register 

2.8 The Governance and Audit Committee last approved the Corporate Risk Register on 18 

December 2019. The proposed changes to the way the Council will manage its corporate 

risks were captured within the report, which was presented to Committee on 4 June 2020.  

It was agreed, by the Committee that the corporate risks could be subsumed within the 

proposed strategic risks, with an appropriate narrative, because these are more aligned with 

the Council objectives:  

• Enabling community transformation 

• Achieving Council transformation 

• Efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

• Ensuring financial resilience 

• Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

• Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy and political change 

Annual Assurance Statement  

2.9 Heads of Service have produced an Annual Assurance Statement for 2019-20 which 

assessed the effectiveness of their key internal control environment.  Heads of Service were 

asked to agree, or otherwise, to various statements based on their knowledge and 

understanding across seven core areas of assurance: 

• Business Continuity 

• Governance 

• Health and Safety 

• IT Security and Confidentiality 

• Probity and Regularity 

• Procurement 

• Staffing and Development 

 

2.10 The overall assurance level revealed that managers fully agreed with 82% of the statements 

on assurance with the remainder being 8% partially agreed; 3% not agreed and 7% did not 

know. 

2.11 Suggested actions will be taken to improve the level of assurance over the controls. These 

may be addressed at service level, or corporately, to improve internal controls. Internal Audit 

as part of the annual planning process will seek verification of the assurance levels being 

provided. This will further inform the overall assurance with regards to the management of 

assurance within the Council. Actions will be monitored throughout 2020-21. 

3 Business Continuity Annual Report 

Introduction 

3.1 The period 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was a year dominated by two unique and wide 

ranging ‘emergencies’ – planning for the potential implications of our exit from the European 

Union (EU), and the Coronavirus outbreak.  

3.2 During the period 2019-20, the Council undertook considerable work, both singly and as 

part of wider County planning, relating to Brexit and the potential impacts forecast. 

3.3 Risk assessments were completed for the key potential consequences, that were identified 

and where appropriate measures have been taken to reduce or mitigate any impacts. It is 

anticipated that this work will progress, in the near future, as the country moves towards the 

37



 

 
 

new normal. This will allow resources, currently involved with the Covid 19 situation, to 

refocus on the Council’s preparation arrangements for our exit from the EU.  

Business Continuity Plans 

3.4 Specific Business Continuity-related plans have also been further developed to address 

other potential risks and events relevant to the Council. In light of potential risks being 

identified, to the fuel supply chain, as a result of our exit from the EU, a Fuel Contingency 

Plan has been drafted. This identifies critical fuel users, estimates average fuel use from the 

purchased fuel stock, and identifies ways to maximise that fuel stock until such time as the 

issue is resolved. Similarly, the Election Emergency Plan has been reviewed to recognise 

changes in key election staff, as well as adding considerations relating to the possible 

impacts following severe weather. The election held on the 12 December 2019 assisted the 

Council to identify these types of possible risks.  It is usual for an election to be held in the 

summer months and accordingly, the potential risks were identified for holding an election 

during the winter.  

Emergency Plan 

3.5 Throughout the period of 2019-20 work has continued to review the Emergency Plan to 

develop and include an on-call strategic officer role. This on-call strategic officer role was 

established to ensure the Council always has access to assistance from an officer, for 

advice relating to internal emergencies and also the officer can participate at any multi-

agency strategic co-ordination groups. This role provides direction and overview for any 

District Council response to an emergency situation, as well as ensuring effective liaison 

with Elected Members.  

Training 

3.6 Multi-agency strategic-level training was delivered during the period 2018/2019 by the Local 

Resilience Forum and tactical-level training was provided during November 2019. Three 

officers from this Council attended, providing advice and information to enable the officers 

to be able to take the lead on both single and multi-agency incidents, as and when required.  

3.7 To enhance the skills and experience of officers during incidents, an emergency exercise 

was held during July 2019. The scenario was a major fire at a Council owned residential 

premises, and the exercise focused on immediate response, communications and the 

welfare of those affected. To enhance the realism of the exercise, and build on the local 

multi-agency partnership, representatives from Lincolnshire Police, Lincolnshire Fire and 

Rescue and Lincolnshire County Council’s Emergency Planning also participated. This 

encouraged the parties to cooperate and understand each other’s roles and responsibilities, 

which has been unseen in previous single agency local exercises.  

Coronavirus 

3.8 The Coronavirus outbreak occurred at the end of the period of the annual review of the 

service level business continuity plans. This outbreak prevented the running of the annual 

business continuity service-level exercise. This had been planned to cover testing of remote 

working and the new flexible working capabilities being put into place. Covid 19 and the 

restrictions it places upon us, all prompted a significant change in working practices and 

tested our existing Emergency Planning and Business Continuity arrangements. These 

plans were not designed for an incident over such a long period. The Business Continuity 

Recovery Team was established on 11 March 2020, which was just one week prior to the 

implementation of lockdown. Significant progress was made by quickly establishing the ICT 

38



 

 
 

needs of staff to enable full roll out of homeworking to be successfully implemented. Existing 

Business Continuity Plans were reviewed, to highlight key risks and single points of failure, 

during lockdown, and solutions have been implemented. As a result, not only is the service 

delivery maintained throughout, it has enabled additional support to be given to the local 

community.  

ICT 

3.9 The ICT team successfully completed the rollout of the laptops and call centre telephony 

technology to enable staff to be able to work from home. There is currently a daily average 

of over 400 users, working from home, which compares to 30 officers prior to Covid. This 

was achieved by distributing to officers in critical roles with laptops which have been 

returned by other employees, unused, and unallocated laptops.  

3.10 Other than scheduled works, there has only been 1.5 hours of system downtime during the 

lockdown where ICT rectified an issue that affected the infrastructure and user’s ability to 

access their systems. The ICT team continue to provide a robust virtual ICT Helpdesk to 

support officers and Members to work from home and provide support to remote users with 

any issues experienced to ensure a quick turnaround. This level of homeworking can be 

maintained for a sustained period, allowing the Council to modernise services and maintain 

customer access to our services.  

3.11 Significant efforts from the ICT team enabled the successful delivery of virtual Committee 

meetings, including full Council, with public access where needed, using our in-house Skype 

for Business solution. The ICT team continue to provide virtual and physical support for all 

of the virtual meetings to ensure systems are in place and Members are supported. Further 

developments include creating a meeting environment using visual and audio that supports 

onsite, virtual and hybrid meetings. This will enable these meetings to be webcast live, and 

recorded and comply with all guidance and legislation relating to local council’s committees. 

Conclusion 

3.12 The ability to conduct Council business, whilst complying with the restrictions in place as a 

result of the Coronavirus outbreak, will lead to a fundamental review of the Council’s 

business continuity plans. Prior emphasis on alternative premises, as a relocation option for 

service areas, no longer applies, whilst the reliance on a robust ICT infrastructure and 

communications has grown. Recent investment in the resilience of the ICT infrastructure 

and the use of Microsoft Teams has significantly strengthened the resilience of the Council.  

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plans will reflect this going forward. 

3.13 The events of 2019/20 and early 2020/21 have demonstrated the robustness of our 

emergency planning and business continuity arrangements, as well as the ability of 

managers and staff to adapt. It is essential that the Council continues to work at this level 

to maintain and improve our corporate resilience and the ways in which we are able to 

support our partners, agencies and communities during an emergency situation.   

4 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

4.1 The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the following proposed actions which 

are further detailed in Appendix A where appropriate: 

• An additional Governance and Audit Committee to be held on 5 November 2020 to focus 

on Risk Management including the following: 

39



 

 
 

− The creation of a Strategic Risk Register which will subsume the current corporate 

risks 

− The move away from capturing ‘business as usual’ service risks to focussing on 

‘emerging’ and ‘exceptional’ risks  

• The improvement to the Annual Assurance Statement process which will capture 

corporate controls  

• The utilisation of software which will provide greater visibility and strengthen 

accountability 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation 

5.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the risk management and business continuity arrangements in place and the 

activities that are being undertaken. In order to be able to consider the outcome of any 

review of existing arrangements, the Committee must be fully informed. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 None 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 Members of the Committee are responsible for monitoring actions taken and to be taken on 

behalf of the Council, to identify corporate business risks and assess whether they are being 

effectively managed. It is essential they are kept up to date with details of the risks and how 

they have been mitigated. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Services 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The recommendations will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

13 Background Papers 

13.1 Risk Management Framework and Appendix  

Report to the 20 September 2018 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 

40

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21352/CFM469%20Risk%20Management%20Framework%202018-2020.pdf


 

 
 

Appendix A - Risk Management Framework 2018 - 2020 

13.2 Internal Audit Progress Report 

Report to the 4 June 2020 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 

13.3 Corporate Risk Register and Appendix 

Report to the 21 March 2019 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register March 2019 

13.4 Risk Management Framework - Proposed Changes and Appendices 

Report to the 4 June 2020 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix A - Mapping of Corporate Risks to Strategic Risks 

Appendix B - Strategic Risks 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by Not applicable 

Final Decision date   23 July 2020 

 

41

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s21353/CFM469%20Appendix%20A%20Risk%20Management%20Framework%202018-20.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25671/Progress%20Report%20May%202020%20SKDC.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22520/Corporate%20Risk%20Register%20Update.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22521/Appendix%20A%20-%20Corporate%20Risk%20Register.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25679/Risk%20Management%20Framework%20-%20proposed%20changes.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25680/Appendix%20A%20-%20Mapping%20of%20Corporate%20Risks%20to%20Strategic%20Risks.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s25681/Appendix%20B%20-%20Strategic%20Risks.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

23 July 2020 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

  Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

           

 

2019/20 Treasury Management Annual Report 

This report provides the Governance and Audit Committee with the details of the Council’s 
treasury management activity for the financial year 2019/20 

 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

 
01476 406208 

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer  9 July 2020 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 10 July 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

15 July 2020 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. It is recommended that the Governance and Audit Committee: 

• Note and approve the annual report on the treasury management activity for 
2019/20 

• Approve the amendment to the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy with 
respect to financial limits for investments with Local Authorities 

 

43

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators each year. This report meets the requirements of both the 

CIPFA Code of practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential 

Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 This report is in accordance with the requirement placed on the Council, by regulations 

issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an annual treasury management 

review of activities and performance against prudential and treasury indicators for the period 

2019/20. This report also meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 

Local Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

2.2 For the financial year 2019/20 the Council adhered to the suggested minimum reporting 

requirements and Members received the following reports: 

• An annual treasury management strategy in advance of the year which was approved 
by Council on 1 March 2019 

• A mid-year treasury update report which was approved by Governance and Audit 
Committee on 18 December 2019 

• An annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 
Strategy (this report) 

2.3 Governance and Audit Committee has delegated powers from Council to deal with matters 

relating to the Council’s treasury management activities. Specifically, it has the responsibility 

to monitor, review and amend as appropriate the Council approved Treasury Management 

Strategy during the financial year. The regulatory environment places a much greater onus 

on Members for the review and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This 

report is important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury 

activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies previously approved by 

Members. 

2.4 The economy (commentary provided by Link Asset Services, the Council’s Treasury 

Advisers): 

• Economic growth in 2019/20 ranged between -0.2% and 0.5%. The coronavirus 
outbreak has resulted in whole sections of the economy temporarily shutting down, 
which will result in a fall in GDP of at least 15% in quarter two and there are uncertainties 
as to how quickly the UK economy will recover.       

• The bank rate was cut twice in March from 0.75% to 0.10% in response to the COVID-
19. Market expectations for increases in Bank rate have been pushed back as a result 
of the COVID-19 crisis. In addition, they increased quantitative easing (QE) and 
introduced measures to subsidise businesses to avoid a collapse in employment during 
the period that the country was shut down.  Investment rates are, therefore, expected to 
be significantly lower in 2020/21, for example Money Market Fund (MMF) rates are 
currently in the region of 0.3% compared with 0.75% in July 2019. 

• CPI inflation remained within a range 2.0% and 1.5%.  

44



 

 
 

On 9 October 2019 PWLB borrowing rates were increased by 1%. The Council has 
access to the certainty rate which reduces the rate on all borrowing by 0.2%. On 12 
March the PWLB introduced a 1% reduction on rates for all HRA borrowing, so along 
with the certainty rate, the interest rates on HRA borrowing are 1.2% lower than the 
published rates.   

Treasury Position as at 31 March 2020 

2.5 The Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 was approved by Council on 1 March 2019. 

A key element of daily operations focuses on comparing current market conditions in 

conjunction with the Link credit rating list, using this as a tool for guidance, with the option 

to deviate from this guidance only when there are clear alternative options available to the 

Council. Any decision of this nature is clearly documented for audit purposes. The aim of 

the Strategy is to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which enables 

diversification of investments and thus avoidance of risk whilst providing security. A 

summary of the Council’s treasury position as at 31 March 2020 is as follows: 

Actual borrowing 
position 

31 March 2019 31 March 2020 

 Principal Average 
Rate 

Principal Average 
Rate 

Fixed Interest Rate Debt £99.100m 2.35% £95.878m 2.45% 

 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

£114.602m £111.232m 

Over/(Under) borrowing (£15.502m) (£15.354m) 

Investment position 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 

 

 Principal Average 
Rate 

Principal Average 
Rate 

Fixed Interest Investments £49.640m 1.08% £17.000m 1.09% 

Variable Interest 
Investments 

£10.774m 0.77% £38.150m 0.74% 

Total Investments £60.414m 0.97% £55.150m 0.99% 

Net borrowing position £38.686m  £40.728m  

 

Actual Debt Management activity during 2019/20 

2.6 On 30 March 2020 an HRA loan for £25m with an interest rate of 1.99% matured, this was 

replaced with a new loan through the Public Work Loans Board for £25m with an interest 

rate of 1.63% (1.2% lower than published rates). This new lower rate will result in an annual 

saving of £90k on HRA interest payable. 

45



 

 
 

2.7 The £95.878m is split between short term and long term borrowing as follows: 

• Short term - £3.221m which is repayable within the next 12 months 

• Long term - £92.657m 

Actual Investment Management activity during 2019/20 

2.8 The Council’s investment policy is governed by Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) guidance, which was implemented in the annual Investment Strategy 

approved by Council on 1 March 2019. The investment activity during the year complied 

with the approved Strategy until 24 March 2020, when the additional loan from PWLB was 

taken out and the funds were placed on Money Market funds until 30 March 2020, when the 

existing loan was repaid. During the year the Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

2.9 As at 31 March 2020 the Council held short and long-term investments of £55.150m and 

was compliant with the Council’s policy to hold not more than 35% of investments as long 

term. This total includes a £1.12m investment in Gravitas and a £3m investment in the 

CCLA Property Fund.   

2.10 The CCLA Property Fund invests in property so the value of any investment in the Fund 

varies in line with the fluctuations of property values and the Council receives a quarterly 

dividend payment, accordingly. In line with any investment in property, a long term 

investment view is taken and as such a minimum five year period is undertaken, as this 

manages the risk of fluctuations in the value of the investment which was £2.7m at 31 March 

2020.  The primary reason for investing in the fund is the quarterly dividend payment as this 

return is significantly higher than the return on other investments. The dividend payable for 

quarter 4 of the financial year was £30,170, which is a 4% return on investment. In line with 

a number of investments, this element of the portfolio is adversely impacted by current 

economic conditions, but recovery is expected over the medium term. 

2.11 The total amount of variable rate investments has increased between 31 March 2019 and 

31 March 2020 from £10.774m to £38.150m respectively as the interest rates achievable 

on notice accounts and Money Market Funds (MMMF) was comparable with fixed rate 

investments. This decision was made to ensure that the Council was able to cashflow the 

capital programme but has also meant that the Council has not had any cashflow issues 

during COVID-19. 

2.12 The duration and counterparties of investments at 31 March 2020 are shown in the following 

graphs. When investments are placed, the duration is determined by taking into 

consideration the treasury advice received from Link and the cash flow for the Council. A 

number of counterparties are used as the Council has recommended investment limits that 

can be placed with each institution, which assists with risk management. 

46



 

 
 

 

 

2.13 As part of the role performed by our treasury advisers, we are also provided with 

benchmarking comparative information across all their clients which helps the Council 

understand how its investment portfolio is performing in relation to others. 

2.14 The table below shows for each quarter analysis our average rate of return was higher whilst 

managing the risk, when compared to other district councils. This reflects the positive work 

undertaken within the team to maximise our investment returns whilst balancing our 

exposure to risk. 

 

0

1000000

2000000

3000000

4000000

5000000

6000000

7000000

Investment Counterparties

Specified

non Specified

0

5000000

10000000

15000000

20000000

25000000

30000000

Overnight 2-30 31-91 92-182 183-273 274-365 366+

Duration of investments

Total

47



 

 
 

Quarter ending SK 

WARoR* 

District 

WARoR* 

SK 

WARR** 

District 

WARR** 

Q1 – June 2019 0.96% 0.90% 4.11 3.00 

Q2 – Sept 2019 0.96% 0.89% 4.14 3.18 

Q3 – Dec 2019 0.94% 0.87% 3.67 3.05 

Q4 – Mar 2020 0.78% 0.71% 2.55 2.81 

*WARoR – average rate of return 

**WARR – average rate of risk 

2.15 As part of the prudential code the Council sets a number of prudential and treasury 

indicators as part of the Treasury Strategy, the estimated performance against these 

indicators was provided in the Treasury Strategy approved on 1 March 2020 and the actual 

the performance against these indicators is detailed in Appendix 1. 

Change to an investment counterparty limit 

2.16 The 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy was presented to Council on 2 March 2020 

and contained an upper investment threshold limit of £10m for investments with other local 

authorities. However, it is appropriate to review these limits in response to the current 

economic conditions. Since the COVID-19 crisis the interest rates that can be achieved with 

counterparties has significantly reduced to an average of 0.3% and it is becoming necessary 

to ensure there is a greater diversity and range of investments and this includes the an 

increase in opportunities to invest with other local authorities at a marginally better rate.  

These investments are also deemed more secure because of the sovereign nature of local 

authorities. Therefore, it is recommended that the Council removes the upper investment 

limit which will allow it to place up to £5m with each local authority, thereby increasing the 

investment options available. The Council’s independent treasury advisors have been 

consulted on this proposal and confirm that any placements that are undertaken are subject 

to the necessary due diligence checks being carried out prior to the investment. 

Summary 

2.17 The Council’s treasury management functions have operated effectively during 2019/20 

and have successfully achieved the following: 

• Repayment of principal has been secured in all deposits 

• The Council’s cash liquidity requirement has been met throughout the financial year 

• Investment income levels have exceeded budget as investment levels and the rates 
achieved were higher than originally estimated. 

• Robust management of the Council’s debt position; 

• Performance indicators set for 2019/20 have been achieved 

• Benchmarking information shows the Council achieved a higher weighted average rate 
of return compared to the group average 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 None 

48



 

 
 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 As set out in the recommendations. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 

produce an annual treasury management review of activities and performance against 

prudential and treasury indicators for 2019/20 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 Not applicable. 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are included in the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 This report provides details of the Council’s performance in respect of treasury management 

against policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy Framework. Members should note 

the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist the role of the Governance and Audit 

Committee in its review of the Treasury Management Strategy. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no exceptional/high risks have been 

identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 None. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 The report has a neutral carbon impact. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 Treasury Management Strategy  

report: 

Treasury Management Strategy Report 2019/20 (as approved at Council on 1 March 

2019)   

 

49

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22392/Appendix%20G%20TM%20Strategy%202019-20.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s22392/Appendix%20G%20TM%20Strategy%202019-20.pdf


 

 
 

minutes: 

Minutes of the 1 March 2019 meeting of Council  

14.2 Treasury Management Mid-year Review 2019/20 

report: 

Treasury Management Activity 2019-20 - Mid year review reported to the 18 December 

2019 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee  

minutes: 

Minutes of the 18 December 2019 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee  

 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix 1 – 2019/20 Prudential and Treasury Indicators 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

18 December 2019 

Final Decision date   23 July 2020 

 

50

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3654/Printed%20minutes%2001st-Mar-2019%2014.00%20Council.pdf?T=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24459/Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202019-20%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s24459/Treasury%20Management%20Activity%202019-20%20-%20Mid%20Year%20Review%20final.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3876/Printed%20minutes%2018th-Dec-2019%2014.00%20Governance%20and%20Audit%20Committee.pdf?T=1


 

APPENDIX 1 – PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2019/20 
 
 
During 2019/20, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  The key 
actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities 
during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 

 

Actual prudential and treasury 
indicators 

2018/19 
Actual 
£000 

2019/20 
Estimated 

£000 

2019/20 
Actual 
£000 

Capital expenditure 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Commercial activities/non-

financial activities* 
• Total 

 

£16.050m 
£4.948m 
£0.00m 

 
£20.998m 

£6.718m 
£7.648m 
£2.451m 

 
£16.817m 

£6.494m 
£7.142m 
£2.471m 

 
£16.107m 

 
Capital Financing Requirement: 
• General Fund 
• HRA 
• Total 
 

 
£11.754m 

£102.848m 
£114.602m 

 
£11.445m 
£99.626m 

£111.071m 

 
£11.606m 
£99.626m 

£111.232m 

External debt £99.100m £99.626m £95.878m 

Investments 
• Longer than 1 year 
• Under 1 year 
• Total 
 

£4.000m 
£56.414m 
£60.414m 

 
 

n/a 
n/a 
n/a 

 
 

 
£3.820m 

£51.330m 
£55.150m 

 

*Commercial activities/non-financial investments relate to areas such as investment 
properties, loan to third parties etc 
 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by S3 of 
the Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow above this 
level.   
 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of 
the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the 
boundary is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached.  
 

 2018/19  2019/20 

Authorised limit £146.765m £156.765m 

Operational boundary £109.765m £138.765m 

 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the 
trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation costs net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream. 
 
 
  

51



 

Ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream 

2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Estimated 

2019/20 
Actual 

 General Fund (2.07%) (1.14%) (1.95%) 

 HRA 12.56% 14.50% 17.06% 

 
HRA Ratio – net debt per dwelling 
 

 2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Estimated 

2019/20 
Actual 

HRA Debt £m 102.848 99.626 95.878 

Number of HRA Dwellings 6,017 6,004 5,949 

Dent per Dwelling £ 17,093 16,593 16,117 

 
 
Net borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the 
medium term, the Council’s external borrowing net of investments, must only be for a capital 
purpose.  This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue 
expenditure.  Net borrowing should not therefore, except in the short term, have exceeded the 
CFR for 2019/20 plus the expected changes to the CFR over 2019/20 and 2020/21 from 
financing the capital programme.  This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in 
advance of its immediate capital needs in 2019/20.   
 

 
The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 31 March 2019 
Actual 

31 March 2020 
Actual 

Under 12 months  £28.221m* £3.222m 

12 months and within 24 
months 

£3.222m £3.222m 

24 months and within 5 years £9.665m £9.665m 

5 years and within 10 years £16.109m £16.109m 

10 years and above £41.883m £63.660m 

*£25m was payable March 2020 

The exposure to fixed and variable rates was as follows: 

 31 March 2019 
Actual 

31 March 2020 
Actual 

Fixed rate (principal or 
interest) 

£31.000m £17.000m** 

Variable rate (principal or 
interest) 

£29.414m £38.150m** 

 
 

31 March 2019 
Principal 

Rate/ Return  
31 March 2020 

Principal 
Rate/ Return 

Total debt £99.100m 2.35%  £95.878m 2.45% 

CFR £114.602m   £111.232m  

Over/ (under) 
borrowing 

(£15.502m)   (£15.354m)  

Total investments £60.414m 0.97%  £55.150m 0.99% 

Net debt £38.686m   £40.728m  

52



 

**The Council has increased investments with MMF and Notice accounts due to interest rates 
that can be achieved and to ensure that it has sufficient funds available to fund capital 
projects.   

53



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

External Audit Plan Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and 
the Value for Money work for the financial 
year 2019/20. 

4 June 2020 

The Committee to accept the 2019/20 External 
Audit Plan appended to the report.  

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Annual Report Annual report on the audit work undertaken 
during the 2019/20 period. 

To review and note the contents of the report.  

Internal Audit Plan Update on the Plan for 2020/21. To review and consider approving the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2020/21. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the 
policies are up to date and in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice. 

To consider approving the Statement of 
Accounting Policies. 

Risk Management Framework – 
proposed changes 

This report is a follow up to the report 
presented in December 2019.  At the request 
of Committee the report further details the 
move from a Corporate Risk Register to a 
Strategic Risk Register. 

To consider approving the proposed move from 
a Corporate Risk Register to a Strategic Risk 
Register. 

    

Counter Fraud Annual Report Report to review the counter fraud 
arrangements in place and the activities that 
are being undertaken to mitigate those risks. 

 

 

 

23 July 2020  

 

 

 

 

 

To review the contents of the report and 
consider approving the proposed workplan for 
2020/21. 

Health and Safety Annual 
Report  

Report to give an overview of the health and 
safety management arrangements within 
South Kesteven District Council and identify 
key areas of focus.  

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Risk Management and 
Business Continuity Annual 
Report  

 

Review of the risk management 
arrangements and mitigations in place and 
annual update of service level business 
continuity plans. 

To review and note the contents of the report.  

55

A
genda Item

 9



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

Treasury Management Annual 
Report  

Report providing details of the Council’s 
treasury management activity for the 
financial year 2019/20. 

 

23 July 2020 

 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

    

Draft Financial Outturn  Detail of the Council’s outturn position for the 
financial year 2019/20. 

 

 

 

13 August 2020 

To review the contents of the report and 
consider approving any reserve movements, 
Capital slippages and creation of reserves. 

Draft Statement of Accounts The draft Statement of Accounts must be 
approved by 21 August 2020 

 

To consider approving the Draft Statement of 
Accounts.  

    

Risk Management Training   

 

 

5 November 2020 

 

Risk Management Framework Review revisions to the Risk Management 
Framework. 

 

To review and consider approving the Risk 
Management Framework. 

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to 
the Committee twice a year as part of the 
monitoring and review of the risk 
management arrangements. 

To review and consider approving the Strategic 
Risk Register. 

    

External Audit Annual 
Governance Report 

Report outlining the key findings arising from 
the statutory audit of South Kesteven District 
Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

19 November 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

 

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Follow-up Report  Report of follow up progress made to 
implement any previously agreed 
management actions. 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Statement of Accounts – Final The Statement of Accounts, including the 
Annual Governance Statement, must be 
approved each year by the statutory 
deadline.  

To approve the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts 
and their publication on the Council’s website.  

56



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

Ombudsman Annual Report 

 

Annual review of complaints received and 
decisions made from the Local 

Government Ombudsman Letter. 

 

 

 

 

19 November 2020 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Safeguarding Annual Report An overview of the Council’s involvement in 
the safeguarding of children, young people 
and vulnerable adults for 

2019/20. 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Review  

Update on treasury and debt management 
operations during the financial year. 

 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

    

External Audit Annual Audit 
Letter 
 

Annual letter from the Council’s external 
auditors 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18 March 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To review and note the contents 

Certification of the 2019/20 
Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 
 

The Committee are updated annually on any 
significant payments or errors to report from 
the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim. 
 

To note the update 

External Audit Plan 
 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and 
the Value for Money work in respect of the 
financial year 2020/21. 
 

To consider accepting the External Audit Plan. 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. 
 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Follow Up Report 
 

Report to follow up progress made to 
implement any previously agreed 
management actions. 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

Annual report on the audit work undertaken 
during the 2020/21 period. 

To review and note the contents of the report.  

Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 
 

Update on the Plan for 2021/22. To review and consider approving the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2021/22. 

57



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

Strategic Risk Register 
 

The Strategic Risk Register is presented to 
the Committee twice a year as part of the 
monitoring and review of the risk 
management arrangements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18 March 2021 
 
 

To review and consider approving the Strategic 
Risk Register. 

Counter Fraud Strategy A review of the Council’s counter fraud 
arrangements on a biennial basis. 

 

To approve the Counter Fraud Strategy. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies 
 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the 
policies are up to date and in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice. 

To consider approving the Statement of 
Accounting Policies. 

Pension Assumptions 
 

  

Review of Effectiveness and 
Terms of Reference 
 

Biennial review of the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference. 

To consider the Committee’s work over the 
previous two municipal years and suggest 
changes to the Terms of Reference if 
necessary. 

    

Corporate Governance report 
 
 

The Corporate Governance report was 
undertaken by an external consultant in 
2019. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
have requested that an overview of the 
report be presented to the Committee 

 
To be confirmed  

(after the approval of 
the Corporate Plan) 

To receive and monitor the actions arising from 
the Corporate Governance report 

External Audit Ad hoc reporting   
 
 

 
As required 

 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Regulatory policies e.g. 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules, Code of 
Conduct 

Financial Regulations 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
 

 

58


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 4 June 2020
	5 Counter Fraud Annual Report
	6 Health and Safety Annual Report
	Appendix A - Health and Safety Annual Report 2019 20

	7 Risk Management and Business Continuity Annual Report
	8 Treasury Management Annual Report
	Appendix 1 Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2019-20

	9 Work Programme

